Editorial 
Resource Crunch

When we started publishing The Informative Missive, the idea was documentation of every kind of human rights violation on monthly basis. For documentation, it was decided to visit the places or spots where violation taken place, interview the victims / survivors and prepare the dossier/report professionally according to the international standards and to disseminate it to worldwide.  Because during Editor’s frequent abroad visits to attend international conferences, the realization was, the international organizations and audiences had been under-informed or misinformed about the human rights situation of Kashmir. Some organizations operating in Europe and US have resources and money, but little credibility, because of their unprofessional reports.  

Besides monthly documentation, CCS prepared important reports like three Elections Monitoring Reports 2002, 2004 and 2008 contesting the official version that elections were free, fair and inclusive in Kashmir. A survey report “Dead but Not Forgotten” on district Baramulla first of its kind in conflict, and two reports “Facts Under Ground and Buried Evidence” of shocking disclosure of unknown and mass graves in Kashmir were prepared.  These reports empower NRKs and helped in presenting the truth about Kashmir in international conferences. 

We are committed to documentation, because we believe that it is important to record and preserve history, as it will play vital role during and after conflict resolution. We don’t want to forget the past, as past has lessons to teach. It is a fight between memory and forgetfulness. 

There is no data / record available how many people got killed on the important historical day of August 9, 1953.  With the passage of time, it will get difficult to re-collect what you can collect easily right now. However, the major impediment is the resources, as human rights documentation has became a very expensive affair. Nonetheless, we have network of volunteers in different districts of Kashmir but it still needs some allowances to be provided to them. 
The Editor was frustrated and shocked after visiting many Asian countries like Philippines, Indonesia, Nepal, Thailand etc where the human rights violations are less than 10 percent than Kashmir. They receive support from international foundations. In countries, where governments have imposed laws like FCRA to choke them, the international organizations have found ways and means to support them like in Tibet and Burma or earlier in East Timor.  The Christian Missionaries have played an important role but in J&K the overseas resources provided to NGOs in India or to INGO have been diverted for the programmes, which fit in the government agenda. 

In early 90s, when an NGO from Delhi got engaged in Kashmir for highlighting human rights violations was appreciated here. Then that NGO had no FCRA registration and its activists were telling us that they were frightened if BJP comes to power.  The BJP, they often used to tell us will seal their office at Delhi, as they were working in Kashmir, a highly sensitive place or possibly or implicate them in false cases. But to the Editor’s surprise with the BJP coming to power, the NGO got FCRA registration. On that day, the Editor who was close to this NGO happened to be at its office and had a privilege to read the order, which was handed over to him by an excited office bearer of the organization. The organization later engaged itself into track II initiatives and mediation with moderate leadership in Kashmir and later only to discredit them.

Under these circumstances, when the state deprived you from the tools and are hell bent to choke your voice, the role of NRKs becomes necessary, as it could play a very important role. There were high-profile NRKs committed to documentation work in early 90s, when conflict broke out, but with a passage of time the spirit dies down. Later they found their own suitable area of work, which was not controversial. 

One US activist claiming to be a Kashmiri, who was denied visa after visiting Kashmir in early 90s, suddenly got 10 year visa. The gentleman was to be considered a think-tank of a pro-freedom political organization in Kashmir. Finally, he ended up in growing potatoes in Budgam. Potatoes, of course, are productive and human rights are controversial. Notwithstanding, keeping in view the limitations even 10 percent of human rights violations documentation by us is better than doing nothing. We are conscious that most of the documentation is to be done, as tomorrow it will be difficult as memories will fade away, victims / survivors will die, so we are still in a process to do the maximum.

INNOCENT YOUTH RELEASED AFTER SERVING 14 YEARS IN JAIL FOR NO OFFENCE
Syed Maqbool Shah, son of Syed Mohammad of Molvi Stop, Lal Bazar, Srinagar was released on April 8, after 14 years imprisonment in Tihar Jail and Rohini District Jail of Delhi. Maqbool at the age 17 was picked up by some cops in civvies from his residence at Bogal Jangpora, Delhi few days after Lajpat Nagar, Delhi blast on May 21, 1996, in which 13 people were killed and 39 others injured. Maqbool was arrested and falsely charged for his involvement in the blast. After arrest he was booked under sections 302, 307 of Indian Penal Code (IPC) and Section 3, 4, 5 of Explosives Act. On April 8, Maqbool was released after a Sessions Court at Delhi acquitted him from the false charges leveled against him. 
Mabool said that during his continuous detention he thought that his life would end up in Jail. Because of being lodged for such a long period, he expressed that he had lost every hope that he would be freed any day. On returning home his jubilant family celebrated his release but he got dejected after he did not find his father, Mohammad Shah and elder sister Hadeesa. Both of them died long back due to distress over Maqbool’s plight in jail.  
               To interview Maqbool, a researcher of The Informative Missive visited his house at Lal Bazar, Srinagar and talked to him about his implication in Delhi bombing and his long incarceration.    


Maqbool now 31 years of age seemed to be old by his untimely grey hair and white beard. While talking to the IM he said, “In 1996, I passed 11th standard examination from Gandhi Memorial School, downtown, Srinagar and left to Delhi for spending vacations with my elder brothers Syed Nisar and Syed Dilawar who were doing Paper Mashie business there. My brothers had been living there in a rented flat No. 4/11 at Bogal, Jangpora, New Delhi. I stayed with them for more than four months as I was learning about our family business. A week before my arrest both of brothers returned Kashmir to bring commodities for one of customers in Delhi who had ordered some products. After my brother left I used to stay alone in the flat and was looking after our stocked merchandise. When I was arrested I was unaware about the happening of any blast in Delhi.”

While recollecting the night of arrest he added: “After my brothers return to Kashmir I did not move out of Bogal because I was concerned about our goods and other business items at our flat. Few days after the blast, some security personnel in civvies raided my flat during night at about 2:30am. After I opened door they arrested me and seized some goods, our business documents and some cash. I asked them reason for arrest. They replied about some investigation and assured that they would release me shortly. I was just 17 years old then, due to age bar I failed to understand the gravity of situation. I was taken to Jangpora police station and was detained there for half of the night. Next day in the afternoon I was shifted to Nizamudin Police Station. I again asked police why they detained me, they answered that they are investigating into Lajpat Nagar blasts case. In Nizamudin police station I was detained for about 10 day. During 10 days I found many Kashmiris were being detained on daily bases. From Nizamudin police station I was shifted to Delhi Police Special Cell Headquarters (DPSCH) at Lodhi Road. In DPSCH I was held for more 10 days. In DPSCH about 50 other Kashmiris were also detained in connection with the blast.”


Mabool further narrated: “about 22 days passed off and my family was unaware about the place of my detention. Continuously for 22 days I screamed and pleaded for my release but the security personnel every time provide different pretexts. On the 23rd day, two cops told me that they would release me and even asked me for offering a feast to them at the time of release. I got delighted and thought of release from their clutches, but I was unaware that they would book me for whole of my life. The duo cops after boarding me on a scooter took me to the court, an unknown place for me then. They parked their scooter and directed to wait near scooter until they return. I sit on the scooter and waited them. They returned after half an hour and then caught my hand moved me towards the court premises. While entering court they directed me to remain silent and not to open mouth, which I obeyed as I expected my release. After getting some documents signed from a judge they took me to a nearby building where I was kept in lock up. I wept a lot and pleaded for my release, but they turned a deaf ear. Inside lock up there were about 50 other detainees when they found me weeping they consoled me and said everything would be all right. I was so young that I got afraid to see other detainees.”


“After 2 hours detention in lock up, a long police vehicle stopped outside. Then all the detainees including me were bundled into it and were taken to Tihar, Jail. The documents prepared by DPSC cops stated that concerning Lalpat Nagar blasts, a case under FIR No. 517/96 under sections 302/307 RPC and 3, 4, 5 Explosives Act had been registered against me in the police station Lajpat Nagar. The documents also mentioned that police arrested me on 17/06/1996 and same day they took me to the court. Whenever, the truth was that police had arrested me 3 weeks before presenting me in the court of law. In Tihar Jail due to being minor I was kept in Juvenile Jail for about two years. After two years I was shifted to another jail where I was detained in high security Jail. In Tihar I was held for 9 ½ years. During those nine years life had become hell for me and my entire future dreams had shattered. Then on 25th November 2005 I was shifted to Rohini District Jail Delhi. In Rohini Jail I was jailed for 4 ½ years. Eventually after delayed process of justice I was acquitted by a session’s court on April 8, 2010and was released.” 


According to Maqbool, he was denied speedy and frail trial, which prolonged his detention to 14 years. Even the delay in justice according to him caused due to constant transferring of Judges in the court. According to him, during his 14 years trials 26 Judges attended his case. There judges were transferred from time to time without solving his case. Eventually, after 14 years a verdict about his acquittal was given by a session’s court in Delhi.

Syed Hassan, elder brother of Maqbool said, “The time our father heard about Maqbool’s arrest in Delhi he got a cardiac attack. We rushed him to the hospital where doctors observed that his blood pressure was very low. Since he got the shock he did not recouped for more than one year. Even the right side of his body got paralyzed. With the result of persistent agony he succumbed to his illness in August 1997. Throughout the period of his illness everyday he would often craved to see Maqbool which he could not. Then in 2005 our sister Hadeesa went to Tihar to meet Maqbool. Brother’s condition traumatized her due to which she developed severe disorder and died within four months.”

Hassan added, “not only we incurred loss of life but also our whole business busted. We spent lacs of rupees on Maqbool’s trial as we hired renowned lawyers who were fighting his case in the court. Even after Maqbool arrest we could not carry on our business in Delhi. We lost everything and at times we borrowed money from our relatives and friends to meet our needs. Life had become meaningless and tragic for our whole family.”
“Can security agencies return Maqbool’s 14 years of life?  His whole life ruined and he has nothing to do. He served 14 years for none of his faults. Maqbool is about 32 but seems to be older than that because his beard and hairs have turned grayish. He could have been acquitted few days after his arrest but the agencies implicated him in a false case and spoiled his life”, complained Syed Hassan.

The victim family expressed that the family business has already vanished and Maqbool has nothing to do so that he can sustain his life. They also expressed anguish that so far no body raised the issue of Maqbool’s plight after his release.    
GUNMEN SHOT DEAD CABLE OPERATOR 

On April 23, unidentified gunmen shot dead father of three daughters, Ashiq Hussain Khan (46) son of Haji Ghulam Nabi at his residence at Khawaja Gilgit, Batpora, Sopore about 50kms from Srinagar in the north district Baramulla. The deceased was the owner of Sopore Cable Network and president of Sopore Auqaf committee. The killing created terror in Batapora, as the assailants fired many bullets while escaping from the locality.

Next day, a statement issued to a local news agency KNS by a person claiming to be Hassan Askari, spokesperson of Harkat-ul-Mujahideen (HuM) owned responsibility for Ashiq Hussain’s killing. On the contrary Harkat-ul-Mujahideen outfit on April 25 refuted the said claim.  However, the victim family alleges spreading of different rumors about the killing.  The family further accused police’s non-seriousness concerning the Ashiq’s killing.

To document the facts about incident, a researcher of The Informative Missive visited victim’s family and talked to the morning family members and neighbors of slain Ashiq. 

Ajaz Hussain, Ashiq younger brother stated: “At about 8:30 pm we all in the family including Ashiq were having our dinner in kitchen. While having dinner Ashiq told me that he would finish food quickly and will go for dusk prayers. Azaan (call for prayers) was just finished, meanwhile we got knock at the door of our corridor. My elder sister went out of kitchen and tried to open the door. Before she unbolts the door properly two gunmen, one masked and another unmasked, banged the door and barged inside. One of the gunmen with an AK-47 rifle standing at the kitchen door shouted ‘who is Ashiq?’ I stood up and replied me. I moved near to him and found another gunman with a pistol in his hand in corridor. For having a look at unmasked gunman the masked gunman, caught me by collar, slapped me and asked me to show identity card. Due to fear, Ashiq’s elder daughter moved to another room.  Ashiq was sitting; when the gunman slapped me. Ashiq stood up and moved near to the gunman. In the meantime, my mother and my minor nieces started to weep and craved gunmen for my brother’s life. Turning a deaf ear to pleas, the gunman aimed at his chest. When Ashiq thought he would open fire, he trapped shaft of gun. As he bent down the shaft the gunman opened fire, which hit Ashiq’s right thigh. He felt down; the gunman then fired another bullet at the right side of his abdomen and ran out.”

He added: “while escaping they fired more bullets in our courtyard and lane to create fear and fled away. Our family broke to shrieks and cried for help, our neighbors came and rushed Ashiq to Sub-district hospital Sopore. He was bleeding profusely. The bullet fired on his abdomen had damaged his gallbladder. Due to lack of facilities in Sopore hospital he couldn’t get treated well. The doctors then directed us to shift him to Sheri-e-Kashmir Institute of Medical Science (SKIMS), Srinagar. On way to SKIMS he succumbed to his injuries. He had bled profusely and the doctors in Sopore hospital could not even stop his blood loss. Had we been living near a good hospital he could have been saved.”

“Why I was not killed instead of my son. Due to severe illness I could not move out of my bedding but still I pleaded callous gunmen to leave my son. They ruined my whole family particularly my three grand daughters. I am myself vanishing, who will now look after his three minor daughters. Ashiq was our sole bread earner,” Haji Ghulam Nabi (80), ailing father of Ashiq, who suffers from multiple disorders mourned.
“Not only he was feeding us, but was feeding many other destitute families of Sopore about which we were unaware till his death. He was a philanthropist, which can be confirmed from anybody in Sopore. Despite offering five-time-prayers, he would always give most of his earnings into charity. What made ruthless gunman to snatch away such a generous person”, said Ashiq friend, Imtiyaz Ahmad.    

The victim family is inquisitive to know about the perpetrators. However they revealed that on March 16 evening Ashiq through his news channel had telecasted the loot done by SOG personnel of police after the shootout in Sopore, in which a youth Tanveer Ahmad of Sher Colony was killed and a police personnel was injured. The new footage had offended police against which they imposed restriction on the operation of cable in Sopore.

“The SOG and Police officials called Ashiq to police station Sopore and warned him for telecasting such news items. Even a ban of four days was imposed on operations of Cable in Sopore. After four days police allowed resuming of operation only after we gave a written declaration (Affidavit) of abstaining from such news items or footage in future”, said Ajad Ahmad.

Aijaz Ahmad complained:  “when my brother was shot our neighbors had tried to come for our rescue but the gunmen present in lanes outside our house had threatened them of dire consequence and had directed them to remain inside houses. The gunmen after hitting my brother ran away while firing bullets erratically. I fail to understand why police did not visit our locality then? If it was dark that time, why did not they visit our house next day or after for collection evidences or for investigating the matter. Everything seemed to be shady. Police simply tried to cover up the matter of my brother’s killing.” 

Noora Begum (75), frail and wailing mother of deceased grieved, “What will happen to my three minor grand daughters, Sana (11), Zara (6) and Sundus (1 ½)? Who will pay for their education now and marry them. The callousness of gunmen shattered everything to us.”

In the meantime, JK Cable Operators Union Sopore condemned the killing of Ashiq Hussain. The members of the Union threatened to call off their operation “until the culprits are traced”. But according to family despite such initiatives nothing was done by police or authorities.  

“Some miscreants probably perpetrators on the name of Harkat-ul-Mujahideen tried to defame my benevolent friend by portraying him as an anti movement activist and claiming responsibility for his killing. Next day the same Harkat-ul-Mujahideen militant outfit refuted the baseless made by the perpetrator. My friend was brutally murdered matter of his killing must be investigated and the guilty should be dealt sternly under law”, grumbled slain Ashiq Hussain’s friend.
GUNMEN KILL NC WORKER 
On April 22 evening Sanaullah War (50), a National Conference Worker son of Mohammad Subhan resident of Kana Mohalla, Hajin, about 40 kms in north district Bandipora was shot dead by unknown militants in an assault on his house. Sanaullah’s son Mohammad Muzaffar, an employee with Hajin Municipal Committee also received injuries in the incident. However, police registered a case and started investigation in the matter. Meanwhile, on April 24, spokesman of Harkat-ul-Mujahideen militant outfit while informing a local news agency KNS, claimed the responsibility for Sanaullah’s killing. 

To document the incident a reporter of The Informative Missive visited Kana Mohalla of Hajin area and talked to the family members of the slain person. 

Mohammad Muzaffar War, elder son of deceased Sanaullah stated: “on the fateful evening of April 22, after having dinner all of us including my father were sitting in kitchen and were watching cricket match. My father was sitting in the corner of Kitchen straight to the window of veranda, where he often used to sit. I was sitting with another wall on the right of my father and other members were in the mid of Kitchen.  Then exactly at about 10:05pm sudden burst of bullets was fired from veranda, which after smashing glass of the corner window, pierced through window net and 10mm ply board which was erected with the same window. My father had laid down straight to the same window. As soon as I tried to get up and wanted to see who is outside, another gunman probably sitting on the entrance side of our courtyard fired three more bullets on me through another window. Luckily none of the three bullets hit me. All of them hit the roof of our Kitchen. For saving my life I bowed down on floor. Meanwhile my mother dared to switch off kitchen lights. Due to fear for life we could not move out for a while, during which the gunmen ran away. The firing episode lasted for 5-10 seconds”

He added: “I bled profusely above left ear. I thought that I got injured but all other members are fine. After firing ended my father was still sitting in the same position, as if he was watching television. My mother went near to him and asked him why he isn’t moving up to have a look about the happening. Once, she shook him, my father fell aside and was bleeding on the back side of his head. He was motionless but was breathing slowly. We all moved near to him asked him to wake up but he breathed his last at the very moment. I cried on seeing him dying, even though I myself was bleeding abundantly. In the meantime, my wife Neelofar caught me and rushed me out on the road wherefrom my cousins took me to the Hajin Health Centre. Wherefrom I was shifted to Sheri-e-Kashmir Institute of Medical Science (SKIMS). My father had received bullets, hitting him behind left ear and on the bottom of neck on the left side. Whereas I had received some splinters on head, above and behind left ear. In SKIMS after medical examination 6-7 splinters were detected inside my head which could not be removed. The doctors told me that the surgery would be hazardous.”

Nazir Begum, (45) wife of deceased bemoaned, “The night was catastrophic for me. On one side I was crying for my husband and on the other side I was worried about my son’s plight. Despite being the most philanthropic person of the village why my husband was killed? I remember he regularly helped orphans and widows of the village. No doubt he was a political worker but he never ever hurt anybody and was never involved in any crooked activity. Why callous gunmen snatched his life away.”

She further wailed, “He was the most qualified among all elderly persons of the village and had done Bachelors degree 30 years back. Owing to his knowledge he often would address all the local issues of village. He was helpful to all and we fail to understand who shot him dead and why?” 

According to victim family, Sanaullah’s body was kept at home for the whole night. Next day early in the morning at about 8:30 his funeral prayers were performed by his injured son, Mohammad Muzaffar who returned from SKIMS early for his father’s last rites. Eventually his body was laid to the rest in his ancestral graveyard at Hajin.

Mohammad Muzaffar further said, “The unknown gunman shot my father from veranda but shortly after firing when my family members tried to find the bullet shells fired they did not find any. We got amazed who removed the shells during few seconds time. Next day in the morning after police visited our house for collection of evidences. They recovered three bullet shells, which were fired on me from other side. One of the shells seemed to be of oldest bullet as it was tarnished with rust. All three shells were taken by police.”

Muzaffar added that during the same night his maternal uncle who stayed at his home at Sopore had dreamt, Sanaullah telling him that he was killed and the perpetrators left their clothes on the spot. When Muzaffar’s uncle dreamt, he was unaware about Sanaullah’s death.
“As per uncle’s dream we tried to search the evidence but found nothing for first two days. In the morning of third day my wife Neelofar was cleaning the veranda and ladder. While cleaning ladder she found a bamboo stick carried by security personnel deep under the ladder. We retained the stick with us. Then we called our concerned Station House Officer (SHO), Sajad Parray and asked him, did his cops forget anything during their visit to our house. He replied no, but in the interim my mother uttered that we have recovered a bamboo stick, which spoiled our plan. We had planned to use the stick as evidence in the matter but failed to do so. After my mother disclosed about stick the SHO demanded it and took that along. He further told us that he would confirm from his cops whether they forgot stick at the spot or not. But so far he (SHO) did not answer us about the possessor of stick. Even we asked him many time and he repeatedly answers that they are doing their work and the matter is in process of investigation.”

The family suspects that the stick belongs to assaulters, which makes their mind to think about perpetrators involvement with some security agency. The family demands the matter be investigated as soon as possible. However, about the claim of HuM militants’ vis-à-vis the killing of Sanaullah, the family expressed that they don’t rely on the claim and said that claims can be false.          

TROOPS KILL FATHER OF 7 DAUGHTERS

POLICE REGISTER MURDER CASE

Apr 24: The army troopers shot dead a civilian and critically injured another near Keller, nearly 60 kms south of Srinagar. The killing triggered violent anti-army protests with demonstrators setting ablaze two army vehicles. Troopers later opened fire on protesters injuring at least four civilians.

According to the residents of Chewan village, troopers of 53 Rashtriya Rifles had laid an ambush in the area last night. “The army fired at laborers who had gone to forest to collect the firewood just before dawn. One of them, Ghulam Muhammad Kalas, died on the spot, another Manzoor Ahmad Lone sustained critical injuries while their another associate fled from the scene,” locals told media.

“Troopers almost emptied their guns on them,” they said. “Two horses they were riding were also hit by bullets and were lying dead on the spot.”

Police have claimed that the deceased and his associates were “timber smugglers,” but locals termed police version as a “blatant lie". "They were laborers who had gone to collect the firewood. Had army asked them to stop they would have definitely followed the instructions. It is a cold blooded murder,” they said. Locals also raised the point why police was not accompanying the army if it had laid an ambush for militants.

As soon as the word about Kalas’ death in army firing spread in the area, youth took to streets and staged a massive anti-army protest. The angry protesters also set ablaze two army vehicles parked on the midst of the road leading to the village. The protesters were demanding action against the erring army personnel.

Troopers later fired on the protesters injuring four youth, two of them critically. The injured were identified as Yawar Maqbool Lone, Riyaz Ahmad Mir, Muhammad Ahsan Lone and Manzoor Ahmad Lone —all residents of Chewan.

The Superintendent of Police, Shopian, Shahid Me’raj said, the deceased along with his two other associates was returning home after dumping the “smuggled timber” at some place. “When they reached near Chewan, troopers who had laid ambush in the area suspected them as militants and challenged them. They tried to run away following which troopers opened fire killing one of them on the spot and injuring his other associate”. He said police have registered a murder case (FIR No. 168/10) against Army under section 302 RPC.

“Protesters set ablaze two army vehicles following which troopers had to fire in self-defence.” SP said. Police have also registered an FIR No 169/2010 under section 148, 147, 435 RPC against the protesters for taking law into their hands.

Army’s Srinagar-based spokesman, Lt Col J S Brar said, “As per our inputs we had information about the presence of militants in the area and we had laid an ambush at around 4:00 am in the area. On seeing some persons riding on the horses, our men got suspicious and asked them to stop but despite our repeated warnings they tried to run away, forcing us to suspect them as militants and open fire on them.”

However, he denied the allegations that the army men fired on the protesters. “Troops did not open fire despite mob torching two of our vehicles. We don’t know who fired on them. Police and the officials of the district administration were present on the spot.”

The Deputy Commissioner, Shopian, Abdul Majid Khanday, admitted that the army was involved in the killings, “There is no need to order magisterial probe as the army has admitted that its men are involved. A murder case has been registered against the army and the law will take its own course.” On the firing on the protesters he said, “Troopers were forced to open fire as mob went on rampage and set ablaze some of their vehicles.”
On April 26, police has recorded the preliminary statements of some of the family members of Ghulam Ahmad. “We have recorded the preliminary statements of the deceased family members. But we will record in detail the statements once the mourning days are over in the affected family,” said Shahid Meraj, SP Shopian. He added that as per the legal requirements the statements of the bereaved family members have to get recorded in a local court. Shahid added that in Kellar case, the army has admitted that it killed the civilian.

“We have to investigate now as under which circumstances Ghulam Ahmad was killed, whether the army personnel had challenged him or not, why were the security personnel in the area at that time,” he said.

  SP added that the investigations into the case will not be tiring since army has already admitted its involvement. “Besides the bereaved family members, the lone witness into the incident who survived during army firing and the army personnel involved in the incident would be also questioned,” he said.

  Interestingly, a media report from New Delhi had said that army chief Gen VK Singh has assured shunting of the commanding officer (CO), whose men were involved in the Kellar incident, besides the CO of Handwara who shot dead a civilian Habibullah Khan and later dubbed him as a militant.

  Police sources said that due to army chief’s directive even the CO, whose men were involved in the Kellar incident, can also come into the purview of police investigations. However, initially the cops would focus their investigations on the security personnel who shot dead Ghulam Ahmad, and their immediate officer at Abhama camp.

  As per legal formalities, since police has registered a murder case against army, the accused security men will have to be charge sheeted in the local court. The court will give an option to army to court martial the accused on its own. In case the army does not accept court martial of the accused, then they would be tried in the court.

  Going by the past experience, army has been objecting to presenting of the challan against its men in local courts without the prior permission from the union government. A situation like that arose when CBI presented challan against five army officials for killing five civilians in a fake encounter at Pathribal on March 25, 2000.

‘FORCES DROWN TEENAGER IN SOPORE’

            CASE OF ACCIDENTAL DROWNING: IGP

Apr 13: Paramilitary CRPF troopers and personnel of the SOG of Police allegedly drowned a teenager in river Jhelum in Sopore town. “As the clashes between police and protesters were on four teenagers, including the victim Zubair Ahmed Bhat, 17, were resting on the bank of river Jhelum at Jamia Qadeem beneath a bridge,’ witnesses told media. “Troopers and the SOG men surrounded the group and pelted stones on them forcing them to jump into the river,” they said.

“As the youth were trying to swim across to the other side one of the stones hit Zubair and blood started oozing out of his head. He screamed for help and a few boatmen tried to rush towards him. However, the SOG and CRPF men fired tear smoke shells towards their boats. As the boatmen could not reach Zubair, he drowned,” witnesses alleged. They said three other youth managed to reach the other side safely.

 
As the word about drowning of youth spread in the town thousands of people raising pro-freedom and anti-forces slogans took to streets and staged a massive demonstration demanding action against the erring force personnel who “forced” Zubair to jump into the river. “It is a cold blooded murder, the guilty should be punished,” protesters demanded as they marched through the town. Earlier in the day at least 8 persons were wounded in the clashes between police and protesters in the town.

Inspector General of Police, Kashmir zone, Farooq Ahmed, told media that it was a case of “accidental, unfortunate drowning”. “The allegations leveled against police and CRPF appear to be baseless,” he added.

VICTIM’S BROTHER KILLED IN 2006 

Death visited Bhat family for the second time in 4-years. Zubair’s elder brother, a 10th class student, Ehsan-ul-Haq Bhat, was shot dead allegedly by troopers in 2006. Exactly 4-years after Ehsan’s killing, Zubair, a class 11th student of Government Higher Secondary Sopore, was “forcibly drowned” by the force personnel in the river Jhelum. His body was fished out around 6pm in the evening and he was laid to rest amid pro-freedom slogans.

On April 14, life in Sopore remained crippled for second consecutive day as protests against the “forcible drowning” of Zubair continued amid clashes between youth and paramilitary CRPF troopers. Authorities had deployed hundreds of troopers in volatile areas of the town, including Muslim Peer, Chankhan, Arampora, Jamia Qadeem and Main Chowk to thwart the pro-freedom protests. CRPF and policemen were directing people to stay indoors.

However, youth defied the restrictions at many places and took to the streets raising pro-freedom and anti-CRPF slogans. Protesters were demanding stern action against the erring force personnel who “forcibly drowned” Zubair in river Jhelum. As the protesters marched through the town, CRPF troopers and policemen resorted to baton charge and fired tear smoke canisters to disperse them. Locals said that at least ten protesters were injured in the police action.

Talking to media the Deputy Commissioner Baramulla Bashir Ahmed Bhat denied that curfew had been imposed in the town. “Restrictions were in place as section 144 was imposed in town, “he added.

On Apr 15, Sopore town observed a complete shutdown on third consecutive day to mourn the death of Zubair. Paramilitary CRPF troopers and policemen were deployed in strength in Jamia Qadeem, Muslim Peer, Arampora, Chankhan and other areas to prevent people from staging demonstrations. However, youth defied restrictions and took to the streets demanding stern punishment for the erring troopers responsible for Zubair’s death.

Police and CRPF men resorted to baton charge and fired numerous teargas canisters to disperse them. Protesters offered stiff resistance and pelted stones on them triggering clashes, which continued till late in the evening. At least five persons including two policemen were wounded in the day-long clashes, locals said.

Deputy Inspector General of police north Kashmir, Muneer Ahmed Khan said that situation was under control.

On April 16, the eight member fact finding team of Bar Association, which inquired into the alleged forcible drowning of Zubair in Sopore, in its report released today, blamed CRPF and STF for teenager’s death. The report, quoting the parents of the deceased and other witnesses, alleges that CRPF and STF men stationed on the river banks near Jamia Qadeem Bridge, Sopore kept on firing tear smoke shells towards teenager Zubair who was struggling to come out of water.

Zubair jumped into Jhelum after he and other youth were chased by CRPF men during clashes that broke out in Jamia Qadeem, Sopore on Apr 13. “My son Zubair along with five other children took the river side to reach Tulbul cricket stadium to play cricket. When the children wanted to come onto the road near Khanqah Mohalla, a Rakshak vehicle of CRPF and policemen stationed on the Jamia Qadeem bridge fired tear gas canisters and stones towards them”, 9-page Bar report quoted Zubair’s father Ghulam Hassan as saying.

The report further said a police and CRPF party coming from Chankhan Mohalla side too started shelling on these children. “Fearing for their lives, the children jumped into the river to cross to the other side. But the cops continued to fire tear smoke canisters towards them in the water”.

Quoting statements of eyewitnesses Nissar Ahmad Jeelani of Khankah Mohalla, Mohammad Ashraf Radoo of Jamia Qadeem, Riyaz Ahmad of Nouhamam and Ghulam Nabi Gojri of Hathishah Sopore, Bar report states, “When Zubair was drowning, people requested SHO Aftab Ahmad to intervene and stop shelling towards the river side so that he could be retrieved from water. He not only refused but ordered his men to target the people. Even the boat that was searching for the boy in the river was shelled by the cops”.

Due to the continuous shelling the body of the boy was carried away to a considerable distance by the water and could be retrieved only near Ashpeer Mohalla, Sopore.

The Bar report claimed that the cops did not spare the funeral procession of Zubair as well.  “When we were carrying his body for funeral, police fired on the funeral procession from the bridge side. A rubber bullet hit me in the leg,” an eyewitness, Ghulam Nabi Gojri was quoted as having said.

The Bar fact finding team has accused Police and CRPF of turning Sopore into a garrison. “Policemen led by SP, DSP and SHO have restricted free movement of people in the town,” it said. The forcible drowning of youth has triggered massive protests and clashes in Sopore and North Kashmir.

GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEE KILLING IN CLASHES A MYSTERY

POLICE: HIT BY STONE, FAMILY: SHOT BY BULLET

On April 30, a government employee Shafiq Ahmad Sheikh, 45, son Ghulam Nabi resident of Dilsoz Colony, Natipora, Srinagar was killed during protests at Magarmal Bagh en route to his office in a 407 Matador. Police stated that he was killed after he was hit in the head by a stone thrown by stone pelters. While as, residents of Natipora and the victim family revealed that Shafiq was hit by a bullet, which pierced through left side of his head resulted into his death. However, police station, Batamaloo registered a case under section 302 RPC against ‘unidentified persons’ and arrested many youth in this connection. 

The killing evoked massive protests in Natipora area. People thronged to streets and held demonstrations. Raising anti-troopers and pro-freedom slogans, the protesters demanded investigation into the killing. To disperse the demonstrators, police swung into action and resorted to tear smoke shelling and aerial firing. During clashes more than one dozen persons were injured.

To document the incident a researcher of The Informative Missive visited Natipora area and spoke to the victim’s family and some locals.   

Nisar Ahmad Sheikh, younger brother of the deceased said, “I was unaware about the fate of my brother. My brother left for some work at 8am. He boarded a Sumo vehicle from Natipora Chowk to Lal Chowk. At around 10am I received a call about his killing. I got shocked and rushed to Batamaloo along with some neighbors. Shafiq’s body was taken to Police Control Room, Srinagar. I was told that he was hit by a stone. I rushed to the spot and found a mini bus with registration number JKO1D-573 in which my brother was travelling. I got into the bus and found the window glass smashed with a big hole on it on the right side of the bus. A stone was present on the floor. Despite being traumatized, I looked around inside the bus and found a small bullet hole exactly in opposite to the smashed window glass. I took a picture of the hole from my cell phone so as to keep it as evidence.”

He added, “After that I rushed to the Police Control Room, where Shafiq’s body was lying in a room. I saw blood oozing out from his head behind the left ear. At that moment he was profusely bleeding in the head despite being bandaged by the doctors in SKIMS, Soura. He had a deep injury behind the left ear.  I requested police to hand over the body but they refused by saying that they cannot do so without conducting post mortem. Then his post mortem was conducted by police doctors but nothing was revealed to us. As we know since the beginning of conflict in Kashmir police have fabricated the evidences in most of the cases of human rights violations. Last year nothing impartial was done in the Shopian rape and murder case of two innocent girls. ” 

Nisar Ahmad further said, “The bullet hole on window glass simply revealed about my brother’s killing by a bullet and not by a stone. As per the bus conductor, my brother was sitting on the long seat. The bus was caught in clashes at Magarmal Bagh area where police had resorted to tear gas shelling and firing to disperse protesters and stone pelters.”

“Strong protests stirred up in the whole Natipora area and other adjoining areas when Shafiq’s dead body arrived home. The protesters demanded justice and yelled to punish the perpetrators who shot Shafiq.  Due to the false news spread by the government agencies that Shafiq died by a stone hit. The voices of protesters about truth were projected as rumors. Initially we were not sure whether he died of stone or a bullet but after we found bullet hole on the window glass we became certain about his death by bullet fired by troopers”, disclosed victim family.

Few hours after Shafiq’s killing Chief Ministers Advisor, Mubarak Gul along with Deputy Commissioner, Srinagar visited victim family and gave them an ex-gratia relief of rupees I lakh (hundred thousand) and also assured them that the government will take stern action against guilty stone pelters which according to victim family is contrasting to the facts about Shafiq’s killing.

“First government instantly provided us rupees 1 Lakh as ex-gratia relief and promised for a government job to me, which is my urgent need as I am unemployed. Second we are unaware about the legal system and there is no one in the family who could pursue the case. Hence, we could not raise the issue of Shafiq’s killing”, added Nisar.

According to victim family Shafiq was a class-IV employee in the State Board of School Education. He was hardly making his both ends meet. According to the family all the family responsibilities were lying on him. The family is worried about the future sustenance as he was the sole bread earner in the family. 

POLICE VERSION

“He was on way to city centre when stone pelters threw a stone at a minibus, JKO1D-573. The stone hit his head which led to his death,” the Senior Superintendent of Police, Srinagar, Javaid Riyaz Bedar told media.

The SSP said that police would get a copy of his post mortem report in two to three days. “But the death has occurred due to head injuries,” he said, adding that a case under section 302-RPC has been registered against unidentified stone pelters.

ARMY KILLS 70 YEAR OLD

POLICE FILE MURDER CASE 
On April 16, it was through local newspapers family of seventy-year-old, Habibullah of Dever Kupwara came to know about his killing at the hands of 6 Rashtriya Rifles (RR). Army was contradictory in its statements issued to media. The first statement came from the army was that they had killed a militant during an encounter at Rainawari forests around 4 am on April 14. Also one AK rifle along with four magazines and 67 rounds were claimed recovered from killed ‘militant’. After the deceased was identified as civilian army made another statement that he was being used as human shield by militants. 

Habibullah’s family strongly disputed the army claim. Police also cast doubt on army operation. 

April 17, on exhuming the body the killed ‘militant’ turned out to be a civilian. Police filed a murder case against the army.    

On April 16, Habibullah’s son Taj Mohammad approached police in Handwara along with cousin Manzoor Ahmad saying that the “old man who was killed by the army is not a militant but his father Habibullah Khan”. On the request of family, the DC ordered an exhumation of the body in the presence of senior officials and family members. The family members identified the exhumed body as that of Habibullah and said that he was mentally challenged and used to beg.

Habibullah, a beggar had left his home on three days prior to his killing. His whereabouts were not known to his family till his family saw his photograph in local newspapers. The news came as a shock to his family. His killing triggered protests in his native area. 

 
A volunteer of The Informative Missive from Lolab area reports, “On April 11, Habibullah left his home. His family through local newspapers came to know about his killing. Shocked to see his photograph, his family rushed to Magam graveyard where he was buried by locals. On April 17, on the orders of Deputy Commissioner his body was exhumed hence identified by his relatives and later laid to rest in his ancestral graveyard.” 

 “Habibullah had nothing to do with militancy. He was feeding his orphan grandchildren namely, Sameer Ahmed Khan, Nazir and Javeeda of his elder son Ahmadullah Khan. Ahmadullah was also killed in a fake encounter allegedly by troopers’ 12-years ago. Earlier he was making his earning by cattle grazing. But after his elder son’s killing, he became a patient of psychiatric disorder and indulged in begging,” the volunteer reports.    

Habibullah’s son Mohammad said, they were looking for him for many days. They also filed a missing report in concerned police station. The news of his killing came as a shock to them. “He was not a militant. He was making his earning by begging”, Raj Mohammad said. 

Deputy Commissioner Kupwara Showkat Ahmed Mir said that he ordered the exhumation of body after family approached him. “I have taken up the issue with army. They have assured me that they would order an inquiry and if troops are found guilty, then stern action would be taken against them,” he added.

During the exhumation people assembled outside the graveyard and staged a massive anti-army protest. Protesters were demanding stern action against the troopers involved in the killing. Following the exhumation, the body was taken to Magam Chowk in form of a procession. Protesters later handed over Khan’s body to his relatives. It was taken to Devar Lolab for last rites.

Doctors carried out his postmortem told the media, “The medical examination of body revealed that he was shot from a close range. Left portion of his head was completely lost. Had he been shot from a distance the condition of his head would have been better.”

Police also questioned the army claim of killing 70 year old. Police said, in their records there was no such a militant whose age is 70 around. Police intelligence officials said the encounter took place in Pahaldagi village bordering the forests- approximately 15 Kms from Handwara town. “There are several flaws in the operational details. We were not told how they got the information about the militant and how they came in contact with the lone militant in the pre-dawn hours,” they said.

They further said it was the first time that they have come across an incident, when only a lone militant was hiding near the forest area. “In routine, more than one militant hide in the forest areas”. 

“We have never seen 70-year old militant fighting troopers’ in mountains or plains. He can neither be a Kashmiri militant nor a foreigner as he seems to be an old man with weak body. We have been seeing militants here from last 10 years. They are always young, carrying rations, scriptures and large quantity of ammunitions for jungle warfare. But there are no such traces which could suggest that old man was a militant,” the officials said.  

Army gave contradicting statements. The army on April 14 claimed him as a militant they had killed while fighting militants in Kupwara jungles. “On being challenged, a firefight ensured between the militants and this party. After the encounter, which lasted 10-15 minutes, the militants managed to break contact and escape into the thick jungles,” said army spokesman Colonel Brar. Army has also claimed it had recovered an AK-47 rifle and some ammunition from him his possession. But when his body was exhumed and he was identified as Habibullah, a beggar then army’s Srinagar based spokesman Colonel Brar contradicts army first statement. Colonel Brar said, “Habibullah was possibly being exploited as a guide or human shield by fleeing militants.”

MUFTI SAYED EQUALLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ENFORCED DISAPPEARANCES: APDP 

On April 28, Association of Parents of Disappeared Persons (APDP) during its monthly sit in holds former Chief Minister Mufti Mohammad Sayed equally responsible for enforced disappearances in the state of Jammu and Kashmir. The APDP stated that People Democratic Party (PDP) is no different from its predecessors or successors. Mufti can’t bail out himself or his party PDP by playing human rights card that too when out of power.     

During the sit in APDP release a press statement a complete copy of which is affixed below: 
In early 1990’s when Mr. Mufti Sayed happened to be the Home Minister of India, armed forces operating in Kashmir to neutralize the populist armed uprising were involved in rampant and massive human rights violations, which of course included disappearances. The political and the legal impunity with which the armed forces have been operating in Kashmir makes the political leadership of India responsible for all the crimes perpetrated by Indian troops in Jammu and Kashmir. It was during his tenure that the Armed Forces (Special Powers) Act was imposed in Jammu and Kashmir along with many other draconian laws. It was the then Home Minister of India, Mr. Mufti Mohammad Sayed who sent Mr. Jagmohan as the Governor to Jammu and Kashmir on 19th January 1990. Jagmohan’s regime was responsible for many massacres, killings, arson, disappearances and other forms of human rights violations. Mr. Mufti Mohammad Sayed as an ex-Home Minister of India is politically and morally culpable for the crimes committed during his tenure as Home Minister. 

From 2002 to 2005 as the Chief Minister Mr. Mufti Mohammad Sayed and also as the Chairman of Unified High Command was incharge of the soldiers who in the name of protecting the sovereignty of India were committing crimes against humanity with legal and political impunity being provided to them by the Chairman of Unified High Command and his complete state machinery including the then ruling party. People were being subjected to enforced disappearances during that period as well. Mr. Mufti Mohammad Sayed and People’s Democratic Party would wish that people’s memory would fade with the passing time but survivors who have faced the wrath of state brutality and the family members of the disaparecidos cannot forget their loved ones nor can the forget the humiliation they faced through the armed forces. Mr. Mufti Mohammad Sayed cannot escape the culpability regarding the crimes which have been committed during his tenure as the Chief Minister. 

Now recently, since People’s Democratic Party is in opposition they have been speaking a lot on human rights, revocation of AFSPA, demilitarization, etc. Our skepticism is natural, given the track record of PDP and its Patron Mr. Mufti Mohammad Sayed in protecting the so-called national interests of Indian state at the cost of lives, honor, and rights of the people of Kashmir. 

It was Mr. Mufti Mohammad Sayed, who in April 2003 during the joint press conference of then Indian Prime Minister, Mr. Atal Bihari Vajpayee said that only 60 persons have disappeared since the inception of militancy in the state. Who was he favouring then?

In the opposition both PDP and the National Conference become champions of the human rights but while in power they not just compromise on their promises on human rights but also become aggressive in protecting the so-called national interests of India. In power they speak like army generals while in opposition they seek the role of human rights defenders. Why this dichotomy?

If somehow their concerns today regarding human rights, demilitarization and impunity are genuine, would Mr. Mufti Mohammad Sayed speak out publicly about the killings, disappearances, torture, massacres, arson etc which took place in early 90’s when he was the Home Minister of India and also when he was the Chief Minister of Jammu and Kashmir state?
If after 20 years the indifference of PDP and its patron has stopped towards the crimes which have been perpetrated on the people of Kashmir would Mr. Sayed and the PDP leadership take position on who is responsible for these crimes? Would they seek an apology for their acquiescence in crimes against humanity?

Would the PDP president vacate her present residence which happens to be one of the most notorious torture chambers, believed to have secret graves of people killed in torture?

CRT HOLDS PRESS CONFERENCE 

ASKS GOVT. TO REVEAL CRITERION FOR “INDEXING” PEOPLE 

On April 17, Campaign for Right to Travel (CRT), an initiative for travel documents, held a press conference in a local hotel Ahdoos at Srinagar. During the press conference CRT pressed upon the state government to make known the criterion under which Kashmiris are being “indexed” (blacklisted). CRT said, more than sixty thousand people are being indexed by the state agencies. Even sick people in need of treatment are being barred to travel to abroad for advanced medical treatment. CRT also made a fervent appeal to civil society groups to join the campaign.        


Following is the complete text of CRT press release: 

More than sixty thousand Kashmiris, according to media reports have been indexed (blacklisted) by different intelligence agencies for issuance of travel documents or passports. This has barred students, traders, sportsmen, unemployed youth, Hajj aspirants and even the sick people in need of treatment to travel to other countries. The number of persons indexed is large; it is unparallel in any south Asian country. What is the criterion for indexing citizens and through which provision of law has not been made public. 

The practice of denying travel documents to large sections of the citizenry amounts to collective punishment without being heard.  Besides voices of political dissent youth are specially targeted. In the state of J&K 5.6 lack unemployed educated youth are registered with various district employment and counseling centers as on December 2009. The number of the unemployed youth is more than that registered and they cannot explore job avenues in other countries because of denial of travel rights to them. 

Right to travel is guaranteed under Article 13 and Article 12 of Universal Declaration on Human Rights and International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights (ICCPR 1966), and India is signatory to both, which states: everyone has right to leave the country including his own and return to his country, and this right should not be restricted to any restrictions. In the era of globalization, this right is being denied to hundreds and thousands of state subjects of J&K

According to a United Nations Development Programme (UNDP) report, the migration for jobs has been defined a positive change which benefiting migrants, their home and host countries. But in J&K state, the unemployment seems to be intentional by the state, as a follow-up of the Doctrine of Sub Convention Operations, dated December 31-2006, which emphasize on transforming the will and attitudes of the people. The economic strangulation of the people is intended to use them in counter insurgency measures, which is also a part of militarization. People have right to know the criteria for indexing a person and names of the persons indexed should be made in public domain.    

In Pakistan Administer Kashmir (PAK) more than eight hundred thousand state subjects are well-settled in different gulf counties and in UK and are sending huge remittance home. 

The selective issuance of travel documents to a section of the society appears to promote the doctrine conveying to people that they are subjects, helpless, until they are not part of the state agenda and that they are disentitled to the right to travel abroad. 

In the backdrop of the above described reality, a large number of aspirants are making individual efforts to secure travel documents. Selective issuance of travel documents has further divided the society and has promoted distrust inter nos. 

Passport denial also appears to be a policy to domesticate and tame people to the extent possible through this policy. A minuscule section have chosen to collaborate with the state on this travesty, while as larger section of people have refused to be part of the state policy. For them this state of affairs is unacceptable and they have opted to fight it, generate public opinion against it and emphasise that the universally recognized right cannot be denied to them.

Even in conflict areas like Palestine the travel documents as per the Oslo Agreement - since 1995 - is being issued. Jordan issues passports to Palestinians. The govt. of India is undemocratic in denying travel documents to huge sections of the citizenry, even circumventing the international declarations which she has signed in the name of democracy and peace, and countering terrorism. 

The successive state governments have been helpless on this issue, occasionally resorting to rhetoric and sympathies. The fact is that the issue has wider implications and has to be raised and highlighted before the international community.

We appeal the civil society for extending their support to this campaign, which is a human issue and is affecting more than half-a-million population of J&K state.      

TORTURE VICTIM’S SAGA

A FOLLOW UP

On 12 November 2008, in the torture case of Nazir Ahmad J&K High, Srinagar has recommended the state government to pay ex gratia relief for the disability he suffered from army torture.  This was a little relief in respect of the damages done to Nazir. However, Nazir is not content by the amount paid to him. He yearns for justice. He wants to see the perpetrators in the dock, and for it he has decided to take a legal recourse.    

January 11, 1995 changed the course of Nazir’s life. On that day, Nazir a resident of Mowar Yahma tehsil Handwara of Kupwara district was arrested by a patrolling party of 14 Dogra Regiment led by Major Multani Veer Singh. Nazir was subjected to inhuman torture for 10 consecutive days in custody. The torture cost his both limbs and four fingers of his left hand. He was rendered handicapped. Nonetheless, Nazir remain firm to the oddities of life and started to earn his livelihood by setting up a provision store.  

J&K High on November 12-2008 directed the state government to pay ex gratia relief to the tune of Rs. 2 .25 to Nazir for damages done to him. The amount paid to Nazir according to him was insufficient and no way near to the damages he suffered due to army torture. He not only suffered physically, but also mentally and socially. 

While giving account of his sufferings to The Informative Missive he said, “The government cannot compensate for the damages done to me by army. No exchequer of the world can compensate my loses . No one even imagine how much I have suffered, and what I had lost. The amount paid to me by government is not even sufficient to buy sophisticated limbs. The amount I spent on my torture wounds and other damages was more than the amount paid to me by the government.” 

Nazir, a mason, once known for his artistry and hard work now needs the support of artificial limbs to walk. The artificial limbs, he said always remind him of the torture he was subjected to. Holding Major Multani responsible for his sufferings he said, “Major Multani is the person responsible for my miseries. I recently came to know that Major Multani was from Punjab, and is now enjoying his retired life. I want to see him in dock for the crimes he committed against me. “

 “Compensation was not my motive; I stand for justice and will not rest till justice delivered to me. I know it is difficult but not impossible,” he resolved. 

Nazir while blaming the state police for its failure said, “The role of state police was miserable. Despite FIR No. 54/1995 filed with Handwara police station by my mother Khatija Bi police failed to initiate any investigation. No effort was made by police in my case. My entire village is ready to depose, but no investigation was conducted. The police time and again was approached by us, but it never paid any attention towards my plight. The only thing the police did, it recorded statements of three witnesses. But as of now nothing happened. There was complete failure on part of police.”  

While highlighting the other aspects of his life hit by torture, Nazir said, “Life has turned a burden on me, after my arrest and subsequent torture. My suffering starts with my arrest. I was rendered incapacitated. My peaceful life was ripped off. I lost my art. My wife Haleema left me.  She often entered into arguments which culminate into violent quarrels. She was doing that only to get rid of me. Finally, she forced me to divorce her. We had a son then only 2 year old son, who is living with me.”

He added, “Now my son is 15 years-old and I am making every effort that the shadow of my ill-fate would not fall upon him. I am committed to provide him every facility more importantly the education. My mother has turned old and she often remains sick. Since my shop is not up-market and I hardly make sufficient earning out of it. Whatever, I earn goes into the medicines of my mother and education of my child. My family is suffering day in and day out.  Sometime they went to bed empty stomach.”

“The torture memories are still chasing and haunting me.  There is no respite for me. It seems it (torture) was done to me only yesterday,” he groused.

“Now I have decided to fight a legal battle against the perpetrators, who ruined my life and family,” Nazir concludes. 

DEFIANCE COST YOUTH’S LIFE
THE INCIDENT STILL HAUNTS FAMILY
Way back in 1990, army allegedly killed a tyre mechanic, Mohammad Ashraf, 16, s/o Mohammad Shafi r/o Mohalla Jadeed, Baramulla district of north Kashmir, during a cordon and search operation at Sheeri, Baramulla of north Kashmir. Ashraf had gone to Sheeri to see his maternal uncle Mohammad Rafiq Sheikh.  

Ashraf’s elder brother Nazir Ahmad Sheikh, 35, while unfolding the tragedy to The Informative Missive said, “On April 23, 1990, I lost my brother Mohammad Ashraf at the hands of army. He had gone to Sheeri to see his maternal uncles residing there. He frequently used to go there. But little did he know that it was his last visit. It was then we saw him alive.” 

“On the intervening night of April 23 and 24, army laid a cordon and search operation. In the morning, an announcement was made asked villagers to get assembled at local Eid Gha ground. The army to make sure that every male has assembled in the ground entered the residential houses (an army norm during crackdowns). While searching the houses, they entered the house of our maternal uncle Mohammad Rafiq Sheikh, an engine driver with R&B, where Ashraf had gone. Rafiq had slipped from house ladders and injured his foot badly, which was wrapped by a crape bandage. He was strictly advised by the doctors for complete rest till the injury heals. Rafiq’s stay at home infuriated the army. The troops without asking for reasons started beating him with bamboo sticks and gun butts. Ashraf being a child also stayed inside can’t resist his uncle’s beating. He rushed to the nearby local Jamia Masjid where from he raised slogans Naria Takbeer through public address system to invite the attention of the people,” Nazir said. 

Nazir Ahmad further said, “This further infuriated troopers beating Rafiq. They left Rafiq and went for Ashraf. All of them entered the Masjid and dragged out Ashraf and three other persons, who were praying inside the Majid, unaware about army crackdown. One of them who were performing Aitiqaaf (a 10 days religious practice in the month of Ramadan, where one has to confine himself to Masjid premises only) was set free, while the other three Ashraf, Abdul Qayoom Rather, a driver and Bitta, a shopkeeper were taken to river Jehlum, some 50 feet away from Masjid. Their hands were tied backside with ropes and they were dipped into river. While this practice was going on, Ashraf intrepidly pulled the rope hold by a trooper on the other side, standing on the bank. He jerked the trooper who fell into the river.”

“On seeing this, the other troopers on the spot rescued their colleague and let Ashraf to drown. However, Abdul Qayoom and Bitta were set free. One of the troopers standing a little away from the spot emptied the cartridge of his gun on Ashraf’s head. The firing sound caught the attention of villagers. Some of the villagers including our few relatives summed up some courage and tried to reach to the spot. But the army didn’t allow them to move ahead. And till the crackdown was lifted at 3.00 pm, nobody was allowed towards the spot. Immediately, after the troopers left, hundreds of people got assembled on the spot. Some of my relatives and villagers made unsuccessful efforts to get his body,” Nazir mourned.          

Nazir averred, “We at home were unaware about the whole episode. On April 25, we were informed about the incident. This news came as a shock to us. My mother Muglee lost her conscious the moment she heard the news. She on reaching the spot made an attempt to end her life, in the same water where her son was killed.” 

“Since we have no mechanism available with us to retrieve the body, we moved an application to the office of the then advisor to Governor J.M. Qureshi. The advisor wrote to the then DIG police, who sent a police team after 26 hours. While looking for Ashraf’s body, three unknown bodies were found at Nowshera, some 12 km away from the spot where Ashraf was killed. But not of Ashraf’s. These bodies were got stuck there. The police took these unknown bodies in its custody and nobody knows who they were and where these bodies were taken to,” Nazir averred.

Nazir Ahmad stated, “After two months, I approached the SP Office Baramulla for taking up the matter. The SP office wrote to Barmulla police station to look into the matter, and I was asked to come after 15 days. When I visited the SP office on given stipulated time, I was told that they have not received any report from the concerned police station. I kept visiting the SP office for months, but officials there were totally unmoved and unconcerned towards my plight. Finally, I stopped visiting the office, as I was disillusioned.” 

“A year after the incident, I approached the Gantamulla then police chowki (now police station) for taking up the matter. The police there told me to bring witnesses. After few days, I took 6 witnesses from Sheeri along. Police recorded their statements and also visited the spot. Thereafter, when I asked the police for perusal, as it did facilitate the ex gratia relief, they demanded an amount of Rs. 30, 000 from me. I would have paid them the money, if I had. I am a poor man and the amount was beyond my reach. I was left with no option; finally, I discontinue the follow-up of the case. I believe the money was demanded with the aim to discourage me”, Nazir Ahmad lamented. 

“After Ashraf’s killing for three months my mother lost her mental balance. She was almost turned insane. We took her to several specialists and psychiatrists. It took years to get her out of shock. She hardly sleeps for a year even today she often calls her son during night hours and remained lost in his memories. The family got completely disturbed since then” Nazir concluded.
COPS THRASH SCRIBE 

Apr 26: Police thrashed Greater Kashmir correspondent, Gowhar Bhat, while he was carrying out his professional duties at Lal Chowk. Gowhar was rushed to the Bone and Joints Hospital where doctors after thorough medical check up discharged him. The doctors said the scribe had received multiple soft tissue injuries due to severe beating and advised him to take rest for some days.

Gowhar was on a professional assignment covering the Peoples Democratic Party protest at the city centre Lal Chowk when a police party caught hold of him and started thrashing him. According to eyewitnesses, a police party led by sub-inspector Javaid Ahmad of police station Kothibagh caught hold of Gowhar and pounced on him while chasing away the PPDP activists, who were participating in a protest rally at Lal Chowk.

“I was covering the PDP protest from a distance, when the police started chasing the protesters. Suddenly a police official came rushing towards me and slapped on my face without any provocation. Though I kept on telling him that I am a journalist, the official didn’t relent. I then tried to see his name on his nameplate. This enraged him and in no time more than a dozen policemen who were following the official started beating me with batons,” Gowhar said.

A local photojournalist, who was also covering the protest, said the police came rushing menacingly towards the scribe before pouncing on him with batons. “Gowhar kept displaying the notepad and pen towards them trying to convey to the cops that he is a journalist, but they didn’t pay any heed to his pleas,” the photojournalist said. Eyewitnesses said Gowhar was encircled by around a dozen policemen and thrashed by one and all.

A group of photojournalists including Omar Ganai working with PTI, and Syed Muzaffar of local daily, Srinagar Times, tried to rescue Gowhar but they were also beaten by the police, eyewitnesses said. Muzaffar was hit on head and later his colleagues also took him away. This is the second incident wherein policemen thrashed GK staffer. Last year, the GK lens man, Aman Farooq, was shot at and severely injured from a bullet fired by DSP, Safdar Samoon.

Chief Minister Omar Abdullah has taken a serious note about thrashing of Gowhar Bhat, by police. “I have already asked the police for a report and the matter will be probed,” Omar told media.

 Meanwhile, a police handout issued here this evening said; “the Inspector General of Police Kashmir Zone Farooq Ahmed has taken strong notice of the alleged assault on some media personnel in Srinagar on a day when political rallies were handled professionally by police throughout Valley.” The IGP has asked the Deputy Inspector General of Police Central Kashmir range to order a probe into the allegation and if found correct punish the delinquent, the statement said.

CRPF THRASHES SCHOOLCHILDREN

Apr 29: In broad daylight, two schoolchildren –one of them having undergone a heart surgery –were beaten to pulp by paramilitary Central Reserve Security Forces at Rajbagh in the City. Eyewitnesses said the incident occurred around 3.00 PM when two ninth class students –Adnan Manzoor son of Manzoor Ahmad of Zainakadal and Faisal Ahmad on coming out of New Era School Rajbagh were walking the main road near Hatric Restaurant. Suddenly some CRPF troopers started chasing the people. “But the CRPF troopers ended up catching hold of these two kids as they pounced on the duo without any reason,” said a shopkeeper wishing anonymity.

 Injured Adnan who was later brought to Mushtaq Press Enclave by his father told media he was walking towards home with his friend when suddenly people started running for safety. “There was traffic jam and suddenly a group of soldiers came running. On watching this we got scarred and ran for safety but without any provocation, they started thrashing us,” Adnan said while showing bruises on his body. 

 His father said Adnan was suffering from cardiac ailment adding that the trauma would deteriorate his heath. “He has undergone an open heart surgery in the past and today he was beaten savagely. His hand is broken and bruises all over body,” Manzoor said while consoling the son.

 Station House Officer Rajbagh Suhail Ahmad said that “actually some students from New Era School had pelted stones on CRPF post in the area. On this CRPF chased them away which led to minor bruises to students. But CRPF has denied that they beat anybody.” 

 Public Relation Officer, CRPF Prbakhar Tripathi denied the allegations saying that there was no involvement of CRPF in the incident. “I rule out CRPF involvement. There is no reason to beat students. Why should they grab students when everyone is watching, buses plying and also so many onlookers around?” Tripathi argued.

 “Actually we came to know through some auto-drivers and shopkeepers that 3-4 persons in track suits beat the kids.” The PRO said after the incident a few students hurled stones on CRPF post located in the area.
POLICE ARREST YOUTH ON MILITANT CHARGES, FAMILY PLEADS INNOCENCE

Apr 6: Police has claimed to have arrested a youth and recovered arms and ammunitions from his possession in old city’s Nowhatta, a charge denied by his family. “During a surprise checking last evening, we arrested a youth Javed Ahmad Chisiti son of late Habib-Ullah Chisiti of Ganai Mohalla, Nowhatta and recovered a pistol from his possession,” In charge Station House Officer (SHO) Nowhatta, Mohammad Jamaal said.

However, the family has strongly refuted the police charge saying the youth was not involved in militancy but was working as a carpet dealer to support the family of 4 that include two small daughters and aged mother. The youngster’s mother Raja Begum said that her son left for work on April 5 and didn’t return even after several attempts to reach him on phone failed.

She said, “When Javed did not return, we tried to contact him over cell phone. But no one responded. Today morning, my granddaughter made a call to the cellular operator who later found that the phone is lying with the police.” She added that the concerned police officer told the family that the youth would be released soon.

“However, they didn’t. Instead they are trying to implicate my son in a false case,” she said. Urging Chief Minister, Omar Abdullah to intervene, Begum said that her son was not even remotely connected with the militancy. “My son is not a militant. He deals with carpets to earn bread and butter for the family,” she added.

SHRC’S ANNUAL REPORT-2008-09

9 CUSTODIAL DEATHS, 43 MISSING, 6 RAPES

Apr 1: State Human Rights Commission (SHRC) instituted 404 cases of human rights violation which included 6 rapes, 43 disappearances and 9 custodial deaths during the last financial year 2008-09 in Jammu and Kashmir. 

The figures clearly indicate continuance of rights violations despite promises and pledges of “zero tolerance” by both centre and the state. More shocking is the fact that cases of custodial disappearance and killings are still being reported to SHRC when successive governments in Jammu and Kashmir as also the union home ministry have been vehemently boasting of having improved the human rights atmosphere in the state. 

Chief Minister Omar Abdullah, like his predecessor Ghulam Nabi Azad, has been on record having stated that custodial disappearance and killings have become thing of past. However, a voluminous annual statement of SHRC for year 2008-09 tabled by Minister for Finance Abdul Rahim Rather in the legislative assembly contradicts both statements of respective Chief Ministers and the CAG report.  

Apart from giving detailed account of what happened here and who did what, annual report reflects the helplessness of state government in plugging rights violations by both central and state agencies. From ground zero in Kashmir valley which witnesses some kind of security action and harassment on routine basis, SHRC instituted 235 cases of rights violation during 2008-09 in Kashmir division. 

Not surprising, the cases instituted included 3 cases of rape, 6 of Custodial Death and 43 of disappearance. Of the 3 cases of rape, 1 was instituted in Srinagar and 2 in Baramulla while 6 custodial deaths were recorded from Srinagar (1), Kupwara (1), Baramulla (1), Anantnag (2) and Shopian (1). With 12 disappearances, Kupwara recorded highest number during the year followed by 7 in Pulwama, 5 in Budgam, 4 each in Srinagar and Baramulla, 3 each in Anantnag, Kulgam and Ganderbal along with 2 in Bandipora.

No case of disappearance was reported from district Shopian. Similarly, 164 cases of rights violation were instituted by SHRC during 2008-09 in Jammu division. Of this, among other cases of violation, 3 cases of rape were registered with 2 in Poonch and 1 in Doda. 3 custodial deaths were reported with 2 in Poonch and 1 in Doda. Of the 6 cases of disappearance, 5 are from Poonch and 1 from Rajouri. 

Figures may be inconsequential but are significant since they contradict government claims. Commission disposed off 698 cases from April 1, 2008 to March 31, 2009 which included 269 cases of Kashmir division, 423 of Jammu division, 1 from Ladakh and 5 from outside the state. Among other cases, SHRC disposed off 22 cases of custodial death and 38 of disappearance during the year 2008-09 in Kashmir valley. 

On similar lines, it made recommendations in 2 cases of rape both from Doda, 19 cases of custodial death and 16 of disappearance in Jammu region. One case of custodial death reported from Ladakh was also disposed off. 5 cases instituted by state subjects from outside the state which included one of custodial death were also disposed off.   

It is notable to mention here that of the 404 cases of rights violation instituted in 2008-09, 71 are of relief and 54 of harassment, thus constituting highest number (124) among all categories of violations. On disposal side of the 698 cases, highest number was again of cases reported for alleged harassment (96) and issues related to relief disbursement (209).  

MILITARIZATION

· TROOPS OCCUPY SANGRAMA GRAVEYARD

Apr 10: While CRPF troops are attempting to occupy a graveyard to create concrete structures over it in Sangrama, resident of the area threatened agitation if government allows troops to go ahead with their plans. Locals alleged that troops of CRPF 53 BN had created some overnight structures in the local graveyard at main Chowk Sangrama, Sopore and attempted to occupy it. They said troops threatened locals not to raise voice against them or face repercussions.

“Friday night (Apr 9) troops raised a structure in the graveyard and would have occupied the entire land had we not seen it in morning. They assembled the construction material during the night and Friday morning one local resident saw the work of the structure underway and staged protests,” said a member of local Auqaf committee.

He said that the 10 kanal land that troops are eyeing to occupy houses a graveyard, a shrine of a Muslim saint and an orchard. According to locals, troops chopped the trees of the orchid gradually and used it for bonfire. Few years back locals converted the land into a graveyard. The members of Auqaf committee accused troops of having made similar attempts in the past to occupy the land in the area.

“First they attempted to occupy the private land in the area and make some concrete toilets. After our strong resistance, they gave up the plan. Today under the same plan, troops tried to construct structures inside the land overnight,” a member of the committee said. Locals said troops hadn’t taken even a single resident into confidence.

Meanwhile, hailing the efforts of local police for halting the work of troops, residents sought assurance from the district magistrate that troops would not occupy the graveyard. “The timely intervention of police halted the work. However, we fear troops will again resort to the misdemeanor as the structures are still intact. We want the structures dismantled immediately and a written assurance from Deputy Commissioner that troops won’t occupy the land,” residents said.

A senior police official said troops were constructing concrete structures on private land. “But we didn’t allow them to do that.”

Deputy Commissioner Baramulla, Bashir Ahmad Bhat assured to take personal interest in resolving the matter. “Residents should approach my office in this regard and I will look into this matter. So far I have no information about this,” the DC said.

Troops in the same vicinity have occupied about 20 kanal of A grade orchid land since 1992 apart from seven shops and a seven room building, locals said. The property owners said they don’t even get compensation for their land occupied by troops.

· DEMILITARISE NIT: WAJAHAT TO JK GOVT

Apr 24: The chairman of the Board of Governors at the National Institute of Technology, Srinagar, Wajahat Habibullah, said the state government must get the CRPF troopers shifted from the NIT hostels as condition in the existing ones was “intolerable and pathetic.”

“I happened to visit the hostels along with senior NIT functionaries, and I found their condition intolerable,” he told media. “The Centre government has already asked the state government to get the CRPF troopers, stationed in NIT hostels on Dal Lake banks, shifted to some other location. I think move should take place as early as possible,” he said.

Wajahat, who chaired a “crucial” BOG meeting on Apr 23 to review the Institute functioning, said, “I found five students sharing a room meant for two. I saw them holding laptops in their laps, with rooms in a messy situation. That can’t be tolerated.”

The Institute, Wajahat said, lacked adequate internet facility for the students and academics. “The students met me and apprised me about their problems. I promised them prompt action. They believe the facilities in their laboratories are fewer and there are not many computers in place. That needs be looked into immediately,” Wajahat, also India’s Chief Information Commissioner, said.

Sources said irked by the administration’s Lackasadical approach, scores of students cornered Wajahat on Friday evening (Apr 23), urging him to address their problems. They said a couple of hostels, a playground, and a guesthouse has been partially or fully under the CRPF for years now, overburdening the existing hostels. 

“It is the policy of the state government to vacate troopers from the educational institutions. But we fail to understand why this policy has not been implemented in NIT. When they can do it with Kashmir University, why not NIT?” asked a group of academics, wishing anonymity.

Wajahat said during his visit to the hostels, he talked to a cabinet secretary at the Higher Education wing of the Union Ministry for Human Resource Development and apprised him about their condition. “The state government therefore must shift the CRPF to some other place so that the students can be accommodated in the hostels at ease,” he said.
· CRPF STILL OCCUPYING SKIMS BUILDING IN ABSENCE OF ALTERNATE ACCOMMODATION

Apr 29: The continued occupation of a 2-storeyed building of the Institute of Medical Sciences (SKIMS) in Soura by CRPF for the past two decades has affected its functioning amid the allegations that the Para military troopers maltreat the patients’ attendants.

Last week the doctors and patients in the operation theatre of SKIMS had to run away from the theatre because of firing and blasts in the CRPF camp located in SKIMS’s premises. The camp is located in front of the Emergency Department of the Institute. The barrier put across the road leading to the casualty during night causes lot of hardship to the emergency patients brought here from various areas. It even affects the movement of ambulances that ferry critically ill patients, from different hospitals of the valley.

At the time of firing and blasts a group of doctors of urology were performing the surgery in the operation theater. “We thought that an encounter started in the institute. There was chaos and confusion in the team of doctors performing surgery,” a senior doctor told media. “We ducked down for at least 10 minutes till there was confirmation that there was firing inside the CRPF camp,” he added.

Some of the doctors even complained that CRPF troopers many a times misbehave with attendants in the evenings. “In the evenings some of them are drunk, roam in the institute premises and misbehave with the attendants,” said a doctor. The doctor informed that the matter was brought to the notice of CRPF authorities many a times. However, there was no action. “CRPF camp must be removed from the institute premises. The institute is having its own security set up,” he said.

The firing and blasts were heard during the visit of Inspector General’s inspection of the camp of 158 Battalion in SKIMS. The gun shots were fired to welcome him. “I do not know about firing shots. Our IGP visited the battalion camp during the inspection in SKIMS premises,” CRPF spokesman said in Srinagar. “We have to vacate the building and state government is not providing us any alternate accommodation,” he added.

The government has been giving assurances day in and day out to have the building vacated by the CRPF. Speaking at the Institute’s governing body meet the then chief minister Ghulam Nabi Azad, promised that CRPF would be vacated from the building soon.

Earlier in 2007, the then director of the institute Dr S Jalal had formally requested the chief minister to return the building to the Institute but of no avail. In a communication in 2004, the hospital administration had requested the government that the Institute was in dire need of the building to cope up with the overwhelming rush of the patients. The Institute saw a ray of hope when the then minister of state for home, Abdul Rehman Veeri promised that the CRPF would be vacated from the institute within a week. However, nothing happened.

The overwhelming rush of the patients especially in the Emergency Department is unmanageable for the administration. About 300 patients with an average of four attendants visit the Emergency daily, suggest the records available with the technical section of hospital.
· OCCUPATION OF ITI BARAMULLA BY TROOPS ENDS AFTER 18 YEARS

Apr 30: Today when students and the staff members of ITI Baramulla arrived for usual work at the institution, they were expecting to study and work in presence of CRPF troopers. Their joy, however, knew no bounds to see the troops vacating the compound after 18 years. CRPF men belonging to 53bn started the vacating process from ITI buildings located in Kralhar area of Khwajabh this morning. 

 “It is really an auspicious occasion and we thank district administration for arranging an alternative accommodation for the troopers,” principal of the institute, G M Bhat, said. He said the presence of troopers in the compound of the technical education institution was impeding the development of healthy academic atmosphere. “The troopers' presence was really worrisome as we have female staff and students,” he added.

The ITI was occupied by the Border Security Force troops soon after the eruption of militancy in the state in 1992. Since then various forces agencies continued to occupy the institute despite stiff opposition by students and the authorities.

 CRPF’s 53 Battalion had occupied four out of five buildings of ITI spread over 30 kanals of land, causing inconvenience and sense of insecurity among 300 odd students particularly females. They had also occupied 80 percent of the land where a parking lot and make shift tents have been erected. 

“Every day we and faculty members had to go through intense security check at the main gate by the troopers. Even female students were forced to remove their veil before entering the college,” a group of students alleged.

“The troopers would search our bags besides forcing us to enter our names in the log book every time we enter the college. It was so irritating and disturbing,” a female student, wishing anonymity said. “More embarrassing and humiliating was that we had to pass through CRPF bunkers to reach the lavatory,” she added.

The withdrawing troops will be shifted to two different locations in the northern district of state. “Half of the battalion will be shifted to District Police Lines while as remaining will be given accommodation at Joint Interrogation Centre Baramulla,” Station House Officer Police Station Baramulla Shams-u-Din Parry said.

IN BRIEF

· MAN ALLEGES HARASSMENT BY FORMER RENEGADES

Apr 1: A resident of Handwara has approached the police complaining harassment by former renegades and informers. Muhammad Maqbool Ganai of Suddergund Hanga told media that three former Ikhwanis had turned his life miserable. 

“Few days back, army raided our house at their behest and harassed the inmates on pretext of militants hiding in the house,” he said, adding he was worried about the safety of his two daughters. The complaint approached SP Handwara, who asked his subordinates to look into the matter.
· TEARGAS SHELLS INJURES 2

Apr 16: Two siblings were injured when a teargas shell exploded in their home in north Kashmir. Police fired several teargas shells near main Chowk Sopore to chase the protesters. The people were protesting against the forcible drowning of Zubair to death allegedly by troopers. Two siblings Tauseef Ahmad and Ishfaq Ahmad, sons of Muhammad Syed Peer brought one of the unexploded shells home. It exploded in their courtyard injuring the duo critically,” locals said, adding that they were rushed to a hospital.

· NC ACTIVIST KILLED

Apr 23: A National Conference Activist identified as Sonaullah war, 50, of Kach Mohalla, Hajin was killed when gunmen barged into his house and resorted to indiscriminate firing killing him on the spot and injuring his son Muzaffar Ahmad War critically. 

· 2006 ATTACK ON CONG RALLY

COURT ACQUITS 4 KASHMIRIS

Apr 24: Four years after militants carried out an attack on a Youth Congress rally at Municipal Park in 2006, a Sessions Court in Srinagar acquitted all the accused in the case including a woman Zahida. In that suicide attack on rally scheduled to be addressed by former chief minister Ghulam Nabi Azad, five persons were killed while 22 others including Inspector General of Police and two deputy Superintendents of Police were injured. Two militants clad in police uniforms were also killed by troops in the ensuing encounter.


Announcing its decision into the case after four years, Principal District and Sessions Judge Gousia-ul-Nisa Jeelani acquitted the four accused Muhammad Yousuf Dagga of Batmaloo, Javaid Ahmad Sofi, Wasim Raja Zargar and Zahida of Zoonimar, of all charges leveled against them.


Among the four, Javed is still in custody and the court in its direction directed police that he be handed over to his parents. In the chargehseet, the alleged mastermind Mudasir Gojri has already been declared “absconding” in the case by the prosecution. However, the defense has challenged this version before the court terming it as “custodial disappearance”.

· NAWAB BAZAR YOUTH BOOKED UNDER PSA

Apr 29:  A youth was arrested from Nawab Bazar locality on the charges of stone pelting was booked under Public Safety Act. Arshid Ahmad son of Ghulam Mohammad Bhat (25) was arrested by a police team from his Kalamdanpora residence of old city’s Nawab Bazar on April 28 for his alleged involvement in stone pelting on troops and police.

Reports said that Ahmad was slapped with PSA and shifted to Udhampur jail on morning. “He was involved in many incidents of stone pelting. After approval from the civil authorities, he was booked under PSA and shifted to jail,” an official at Maharaj Gunj police station said. 

OFFICIAL STATEMENTS
· TROOPS RAPED 51 WOMEN IN 6 YRS: POLICE  

Apr 1: Police said troops had allegedly raped 51 women in Jammu and Kashmir in six years between November 2002 and July 2008. A police spokesman in a statement said 38 rape cases allegedly by troops were reported from November 2002 to October 2005. “From November 2005 to 10 July 2008, 13 rape cases allegedly by troops were reported.” The spokesman said that from 11 July 2008 to 4 January 2009 only one rape case allegedly by troops was reported. “During the period from 5 January 2009 to 23 February 2010 no rape case by troops was reported.”

The police spokesman said Chief Minister Omar Abdullah had mentioned in the Legislative Assembly that 11 cases of rape allegedly by troops were reported between October 1996 and October 2002, thus taking the number of rapes by troops between October 1996 to July 2008 to 62.

The spokesman said that the written reply to Assembly Question No 260 which pertained to troops tabled by A R Veeri in the Legislative Assembly, it was mentioned in the reply of the Home Department that “no rape case was reported from 1st January 2009 to 1st March 2010. This information furnished pertains to allegation of rape cases reported against troops”.

The police spokesman said the Comptroller and Auditor General report had shown 53 rape cases in three months between January 2009 and March 2009. “These figures pertain to rape cases registered in entire State during this period. The figure pertains to normal crime. No rape case is reported against troops during this period.”

· J&K RAPE CASES STATISTICS 

'ZERO' PERTAINS TO FORCES ONLY: SAGAR

Apr 1: The government finally tried to "put the record straight" vis-à-vis "rape statistics" in J&K as the Minister for Law and Parliamentary Affairs Ali Mohammed Sagar maintained that the "zero" rape figure pertained to security forces only and the Home Ministry had not contradicted the statistics provided by the Chief Minister Omar Abdullah on the floor of the House.

Minister for Law and Parliamentary Affairs raised this issue at the fag end of the day's proceedings in the Lower House while referring to the story published in "The Kashmir Times" however without mentioning its name.

"A leading daily of the state has published this story mentioning State Home Ministry contradicting the statistics provided by the Chief Minister Omar Abdullah on the floor of the House in reply to the debate on Governor's address in the Legislative Assembly. Even earlier also one story had appeared. Putting the record straight, the Chief Minister had nothing said about the statistics during the last one year. 11 cases, he mentioned, were those which occurred during Dr Farooq Abdullah's regime between October 1996 to October 2002. This needs to be corrected," Sagar added. 

He further stated, "As far as "Zero" figure is concerned that was given in the reply to MLA A R Veeri's question and that explicitly pertained to security forces. While CAG figures from January to March (53 rape cases within the first three months of 2009) are correct. Yet the figure pertains to the rape cases registered in the police stations across the state during the said period and this figure pertains to normal crime and there was no rape case reported against security forces during this period."

Upon this Speaker Mohammed Akbar Lone ruled, "For future, I caution the media persons. None is authorized to give contradictory figures or statements vis-à-vis assembly proceedings. Even if at all they do, they need to seek my permission to ascertain as who made what statement from the record of the assembly so as not to make any confusion."

At this point of time, CPI-M MLA M Y Tarigami sought a clarification, "Speaker Sir, I want to know as whether this directive would be restricted only to the coverage of assembly proceedings or would extend beyond even. Press is otherwise free. Isn't it?"

Speaker replied, "Yes, the direction relates to the proceedings in the House only." 

· 250 MILITANTS ACTIVE IN RAJOURI, REASI: ARMY

‘16 LET MILITANTS KILLED IN A WEEK’

Apr 3: Around 250 militants were operating in Rajouri and Reasi districts of Jammu region while an equal number of them were waiting across the line of control to infiltrate into this side, a senior army officer said.  “Nearly 250 militants are presently active in the two districts of Reasi and Rajouri,” Maj Gen M M S Rai, GOC Counter Intelligence Force (Uniform) told media. He said that an equal number of militants (250-300) were waiting on the other side of Line of Control in a bid to cross over to this side.

 Army, he said, has launched a massive search operation ‘Dundo Aur Khatam Karo Operation’ in two districts of Reasi and Rajouri and was getting good results.  He said that 16 militants were killed during the present week “They belonged to Lashkar-e-Toiba outfit.  Out of total 16 slain militants, 15 were foreigners while one of them was a local ultra,” he added.

· FROM MAY 1 FORCES TO VACATE SCHOOLS’: PILLAI

Apr 6: Union Home Secretary GK Pillai has said that the forces occupying schools would be removed from May 1. 

 “We still have forces in schools. We want to get them out so that children go to schools. From May 1 we will remove them,” GK Pillai said. 

· MILITANCY THREW CHALLENGES TO JKP: KHODA 

Apr 12: The Director General of Police, Kuldeep Khoda said the militancy made J&K Police to adopt a new wave of challenges adding the police had coped with increased threat posed from across the border. Reviewing the police modernization programme at a meeting here, he said the Police focused on up-gradation in at least eight components, including housing, procurement of armored vehicles and bunkers for anti-militancy operations. Major emphasis was on utilization of funds for procuring latest weapons and communication system for operational groups. 

 He said during past 5 years, the Police was utilizing approximately Rs 100 cr per year in upgrading its facilities. This was necessitated due to the expansion of the force which has increased from 57,734 in 2000 to 82,418 in 2010. He said under this scheme, in the housing sector, 88 police station buildings, 43 police post buildings, 150 barracks and 1911 quarters had been constructed.               

· AFSPA WON’T GO: ARMY CHIEF  

Apr 15: With Government of India (GoI) mulling amendments to the AFSPA, Army Chief General VK Singh has said any dilution in the law will "impinge adversely" on the operations of security forces in troubled states of the country. "Any dilution of the AFSPA will impinge adversely on the manner in which the armed forces operate," Singh said in an interview in the upcoming edition of 'Sainik Samachar', the Defence Ministry's official fortnightly.

· 18465 PERSONS KILLED DURING CONFLICT: HOME MINISTRY

JK PAID RS 2925 CR SRE

Apr 17: Putting the total casualty figures during the conflict in the state at 18465, the home ministry report says that the victims include 13,775 civilians and 4690 security forces personnel. “However, there has been a marked improvement in the situation in recent years, on account of several holistic measures taken by the government, and the people’s yearning for peace”, the report states.

As per the figures reflected in the report, 6384 persons were killed in the state between 2004 and 2009, with the highest number of 1964 casualties recorded in 2004. “The number of incidents and causalities has progressively come down in the last two years and the overall security situation in the state has shown perceptible improvement”.

However, as per the report levels of infiltration, consistently on decline since 2005, have substantially increased in 2009 as compared to 2008. “The infiltration rate has gone up from 342 in 2008 to 485 in 2009.”

J&K government has received around Rs 3000 crore as the security related expenditure (SRE) since the eruption of turmoil in the state. As per the Union Home Ministry’s 2009-10 annual report, the state government has from 1989 till March 31, 2009, received Rs 2925.255 crore under SRE from the union government.

The Report, copy of which is with Greater Kashmir, reveals that the union home ministry has been reimbursing expenditure being incurred on a variety of security related measures in Jammu and Kashmir. “These include inter-alia, expenditure on carriage of constabulary, material supplies, rent of accommodations, honorarium to Special Police Officers, civic action programme, air-lift charges, raising cost of India Reserve Police battalions, transport, boarding lodging, alternate accommodation for security forces etc,” the report says.

· GOVT COMMITTED TO UPHOLD HUMAN RIGHTS: OMAR

Apr 20: The Chief Minister Omar Abdullah said that blood of Kashmiris is not cheap and any force personnel involved in human rights violations would be dealt with severely. In an apparent reference to the killing of Habibullah, 70 allegedly in a fake encounter in Kupwara district. Omar said, “The blood of innocent people in JK is not so cheap that those responsible for shedding it will be allowed to go scot free. We will ensure justice to every sufferer as has been done by us in various such cases during the past 15 months.” 

· 72,651 ACRES OF JK LAND UNDER DEFENCE FORCES: ANTONY 

‘INCLUDES 15892 ACRES AGRICULTURE, ORCHARD LAND’ 

Apr 22: Defence Minister A K Antony said that 72,651 acres (5.86 Lakh Kanals) of land are under the possession of army, air force and Navy in Jammu and Kashmir. He said the ministry will revise the rental of this land in February 2013. Antony however said that no land has been purchased in the state. 

Giving details of the land under the possession of the armed forces in the state, the minister said that 14944 acres 91.20 lakh kanals) of land have been acquired by the defence forces, 24166 acres (1.95 lakh kanals) hired while 22725 acres (1.83 lakh kanals) is the requisitioned land.

The minister admitted that most of the hired/ requisitioned land under the possession of the defence forces in the state is agricultural/ orchard land. “Out of the hired/ requisitioned lands, 15496 acres (1.25 lakh kanals) are agricultural lands and 396 acres (3195 kanals) are the orchard lands,” he said.

Asked whether the rates will be revised in the near future, particularly of the land under the Air Force Station at Awantipora, the minister said the rent for the acquired and requisitioned lands is revised every five years and the present rates were fixed in Feb 2008. He said the next revision of rent would be affected in Feb 2013.

Antony said that 9281 acres (74895 kanals) of land have occupied by the armed forces near the Line of Control involving 283 cases. “Out of these rent to the tune of Rs 4.53 Crore was paid in 210 cases, involving an area of 3850 acres (31068 kanals). In the remaining 73 cases, compensation is yet to be paid mainly due to non-availability of the revenue documents from the state government,” he said.  

· GOI, JK GOVT DISH OUT CONFLICTING FIGURES

LAND IN POSSESSION OF SECURITY FORCES

Apr 24: The centre and the state government seem to be in contradiction over the figures pertaining to total area of land under possession of the security forces in Jammu and Kashmir. While the union defence ministry says that 5.86 lakh kanals of land were under the possession of armed forces in Jammu and Kashmir, as per the state government data, 10.54 lakh kanals of land are in possession of the security agencies.

While the Defence Minister A K Antony told the Rajya Sabha that 72,651acres (5.86 lakh kanals) of land were under the possession of army, air force and Navy in Jammu and Kashmir, the state government had informed the legislative assembly last summer that security agencies were in possession of 10.54 lakh kanals of land.

Pertinently, the state government had informed the Legislative Assembly in its session here last summer that out of 10.54 lakh kanals of land occupied by the security agencies in Jammu and Kashmir, 8.55 lakh kanals were under “illegal occupation” and 1.99 lakh kanals occupied by the agencies on the basis of lease, licenses and acquisitions under the provision of Land Acquisition Act.

In response to a question by PDP MLA Rafi Ahmad Mir,  the government had informed the house that 5,33455.78 kanals of land were illegally occupied by the security agencies including Army, Central Reserve Police Force, Indo-Tibetan Border Force and Border Security Force in Kashmir region followed by Jammu with 3,21951.4 kanals.

The government had informed that 8, 55407 kanals of land were under occupation of the security forces in 80 tehsils of Kashmir, Jammu and Ladakh.

Replying to another question, government had said 1, 99314 kanals of land had been occupied by the security agencies on the basis of lease, licenses and acquisitions under the provisions of Land Acquisition Act, which includes 36,397.24 kanals of land in Kashmir and rest in Jammu.

Responding to a question the government said the land acquired under the Land Acquisition Act becomes the property of the party, which had acquired it.

In reply to another question by PDP MLA Zahoor Ahmad Mir, government had admitted that Army was illegally occupying 170 acres of land in the hill station of Gulmarg and had been raising structures without approval from the authorities concerned. “130 acres of land had been officially transferred to the army in the hill resort. However, on the ground, the government said, around 300 acres were under the occupation of army. It includes 170 acres of garrison area, 33 acres north of Circular Road, 20 acres south of Circular Road, 20 acres for Command Hut and Dagger Hut besides 57 acres for helipad,” the government had informed the Assembly.

EXPLOSIONS

· BLAST RIPS TRAIN TRACK AT KAKAPORA  

Alert sounded on North-South railway line

Apr 2: The rail service in Kashmir was snapped after a powerful Improvised Explosive Device (IED) explosion ripped through a railway track at Kakapora in south Kashmir’s Pulwama district. This was the first major attack on a railway track since the service between Baramulla and Qazigund was started last year. SSP Pulwama Kifayat Haider said the incident happened at around 9:30 pm on April 1.

“When the IED was detonated, a loud explosion was heard in the vast area nearby. Soon after the explosion, a police team rushed to the spot to ascertain the cause of the blast,” Haider told media. He said after assessing the whole area, police and Railway police discovered that the explosion was triggered to blow up the railway track. “We recovered the wires and IED traces planted to blow up the track. Around 2-3 feet of railway track was blown between the area of Kakpore and Awantipora near Galbug. The area is situated 43.7 km south of Srinagar,” Haider said.

Deputy Superintendent of Railway Police, G M Bhat said there were no casualties were caused by the explosion as the trains don’t chug on the track after 7 pm, he said, “By 10:30 am, we had repaired it and the train services were resumed. The security of railway service has been beefed up”.

The attack has come at a time when senior railway officers were expected to visit Kashmir to review progress of the ongoing railway work. The blast in the railway track was the first attack on rail service in Kashmir.

· 2 MINORS HURT IN EXPLOSION

Apr 3: Two minors were critically wounded when an explosive device went off in Nowshera area of Rajouri district. Identified as Nisar Ahmed, 10, and Liyaqat Hussain, police said, the minors were fiddling with an explosive device found by them in an abandoned place at Thalka village. The device went off causing injuries to the duo. 

 “On hearing the blast, locals rushed to the spot and shifted the injured kids to Sub District Hospital Nowshera”, Additional SP (Nowshera) Romesh Bhatt told media. He said that their condition was stated to be critical. 

 
The ASP said that Artillery battalion of army was camping in the areas and was recently shifted to another place. They might have accidentally left behind some explosive, which caused the accident, he added. He, however, said that investigation was gonging to ascertain the reason as to how the bomb was lying in the area.

· 2 MINORS KILLED, 5 INJURED 

Apr 13: At least two children were killed and five members of their family wounded when an explosive device went off near Line of Control (LoC) in Kupwara district, police said. The blast took place in the compound of the house in Karnah, 145 kms from Srinagar, last night. The deceased were identified as Adil Hussain, 12, son of Nazir Hussain and Faisal Hussain, 9, son of Younis Shah.

 “The place where mine blast took place is near an army camp. The army has planted hundreds of mines in the area. During the past 20-years land mines have claimed several lives,” The Member of Legislative Assembly for Karnah, Kaifil-ul- Rehman said.

 The MLA said that he would take up the matter about de-mining the areas in his constituency with top army officers and the Chief Minister. “If appropriate steps are not taken we will seek legal recourse. Army should remove landmines forthwith. If it cannot do so then it should shift families to safer places,” he added.    

· 2 CRPF MEN WOUNDED IN SOPORE EXPLOSION 

Apr 13: At least two paramilitary CRPF troopers were wounded in a grenade explosion in Sopore town, 50 km from Srinagar, police said. “Unknown persons hurled a grenade towards a CRPF bunker near Chankhan late in the night. The device exploded with a big bang injuring two CRPF men, Heman Vajtai and Bhola Nath,” a police official told media. He said the injured were rushed to a hospital. “The area has been sealed and manhunt has been launched to nab the attackers,” he added.  

CHRONOLOGY OF INCIDENTS

Apr 1: The toll in the Rajouri gunfights mounted to 18 with the killing of six more militants in a fresh encounter. Seven militants and five troopers were killed in separate gunfights in this frontier district till yesterday.

Apr 2: Four militants and a trooper were killed in an ongoing encounter at Rajouri district. Meanwhile, pro-freedom protests were witnessed in several parts of the Valley as youth took to streets after Friday prayers.  Several youth and a policeman were injured in the clashes. 

Apr 3:  No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley. 

Apr 4: Army claimed that it foiled a fresh infiltration bid in Keran sector of Kupwara d by killing two militants. Meanwhile, a gunman was killed when they attacked the house of a Congress district president Abdul Gani Vakil at Rumhoo Pulwama.  

Apr 5: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.  

Apr 6: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Apr 7: A trooper was killed in ongoing encounter in frontier district of Kupwara. Meanwhile gunmen shot at and injured a former militant identified as Ali Muhammad Mir in the same district.  

Apr 8: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Apr 9: CRPF troopers beat up many pedestrians in Sopore and Baramulla. Police used tear gas shells to disperse pro- freedom demonstrations in several parts of the valley. 

Apr 10: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Apr 11: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Apr 12: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Apr 13: Paramilitary CRPF troopers and personnel of the SOG of Police allegedly drowned a teenager in river Jhelum in Sopore town. The deceased has been identified as Zubair Ahmad Bhat, 17 son of Ghulam Hassan Bhat. At least two children were killed and five members of their family wounded when an explosive device went off near Line of Control (LoC) in Karnah at Kupwara district. The deceased were identified as Adil Hussain, 12, son of Nazir Hussain and Faisal Hussain, 9, son of Younis Shah. 

Apr 14: Army claimed to have killed 70-year old militant in north Kashmir’s Handwara area while as the family contested the claims and said that Habibullah Khan Son of Saida Khan of Devar Lolab, Kupwara. Family members of the victim claimed that deceased was a beggar hailing from Devar Lolab and he was not a militant. Meanwhile, at least ten protesters were injured in the police action in Sopore town.

Apr 15: At least five persons were injured in the Sopore town when Police and CRPF men resorted to baton charge and fired numerous teargas canisters to disperse the protestors. The people were protesting against the troopers who forcibly drowned Zubair Ahmad Bhat in river Jhelum.
Apr 16: Army and SOG claimed to have killed two Hizbul Mujahideen militants in an encounter in Shopian district. The slain militants have been identified as Fayaz Peer of Sangarwani, Kellar and Usman, a foreigner. Meanwhile, two siblings were injured when a teargas shell exploded in their home in north Kashmir. Police fired several teargas shells near main Chowk Sopore to chase the protesters. The people were protesting against the forcible drowning of Zubair to death allegedly by troopers. Two siblings Tauseef Ahmad and Ishfaq Ahmad, sons of Muhammad Syed Peer brought one of the unexploded shells home. It exploded in their courtyard injuring the duo critically.
Apr 17: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Apr 18: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Apr 19: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Apr 20: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.
Apr 21:  Unidentified gunmen gunned down a police personal in Marwah area of Kishtwar district. The deceased has been identified as Constable Bashir Ahmed Sheikh son of Ghulam Ahmed Sheikh of Gardh Daman, Marwah.
Apr 22: A National Conference activist identified as Sonaullah War, 50, of Kach Mohalla was killed when gunmen barged into his house and resorted to indiscriminate firing killing him on the spot and injuring his son Muzaffar Ahmad War critically.
Apr 23: Gunmen fired upon Ashiq Hussain, proprietor of the local cable network, at Sopore town. He was rushed to hospital where doctors declared him brought dead. Meanwhile, police claimed to have killed an unidentified militant in a gun battle in Jammu’s Doda district. In another incident, at least 20 persons, one of them critically, were injured during the police action at different places across the valley. One of the injured Manzoor Ahmad Mir, an employee of the Animal Husbandry department of Nowshera was hit by a bullet in his abdomen. 

Apr 24: The Doda encounter which started yesterday ended with the killing of one more militant taking the death toll to two. The slain militants have been identified as Tanvir Ahmad and Zubair Ahmad of Hizbul Mujahideen. Meanwhile, the army troopers of 53 RR shot dead a civilian and critically injured another near Keller, Shopian who had gone to forest to collect the firewood. The deceased has been identified as Ghulam Muhammad Kalas and the injured has been identified as Manzoor Ahmad Lone.

Apr 25: A dead body was fished out from Lidder near Yanner Pahalgam in South Kashmir. The deceased has been identified as Muhammad Yousuf Khatana son of Lala of Gujran Batakote Pahalgam. Police said the missing report of the deceased was lodged in police station Pahalgam on April 23. Meanwhile, at least five persons were wounded when policemen and paramilitary CRPF troopers resorted to baton charge and fired tear smoke canisters to disperse pro-freedom demonstrations in different parts of the old city. A youth jumped into the river from Habba Kadal Bridge to save himself from the CRPF troopers who were charging towards him. He was later fished out by some local women from the river.

Apr 26: Unidentified gunmen shot dead a paramilitary CRPF trooper in central Kashmir. Gunmen fired upon the paramilitary CRPF trooper, Mehar Singh, near Magam bus stand. Singh was rushed to the hospital where doctors declared him brought dead. 

Apr 27: At least 13 persons were injured when Police and Paramilitary CRPF troopers baton charged them and fired tear smoke canisters to disperse them. People were protesting against the killing of a cable operator, who was shot dead by unidentified gunmen.  

Apr 28: No incidents of violence were reported from any part of the valley.

Apr 29: Two school children –one of them having undergone a heart surgery –were beaten to pulp by paramilitary CRPF at Rajbagh, Srinagar when they were coming out of New Era School. The two injured boys have been identified as Adnan Manzoor son of Manzoor Ahmad of Zainakadal and Faisal Ahmad both ninth class students.

Apr 30: Army claimed to have killed three militants near the Line of Control (LoC) in frontier district of Kupwara. The identity of the slain militants was not ascertained. Meanwhile, a government employee was killed during protests at Magarmal Bagh. He was killed after being hit by a stone thrown by stone pelters. The deceased has been identified as Shafiq Ahmad Sheikh, 45, son of Ghulam Nabi of Dilsoz Colony, Natipora. Meanwhile, around 20 people were injured in clashes with police in different parts of the valley.

KILLINGS IN THE MONTH OF APR-2010

	  DATE
	SOLDIERS
	MILITANTS
	CIVILIANS
	OTHERS

	Apr 01
	-
	6
	-
	-

	Apr 02
	1
	4
	-
	-

	Apr 03
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 04
	-
	2
	-
	-

	Apr 05
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 06
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 07
	1
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 08
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 09
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 10
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 11
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 12
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 13
	-
	-
	3
	-

	Apr 14
	-
	-
	1
	-

	Apr 15
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 16
	-
	2
	-
	-

	Apr 17
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 18
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 19
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 20
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 21
	1
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 22
	-
	-
	-
	1(NC activist)

	Apr 23
	-
	1
	1
	-

	Apr 24
	-
	1
	1
	-

	Apr 25
	-
	-
	-
	1(Dead body)

	Apr 26
	1
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 27
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 28
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 29
	-
	-
	-
	-

	Apr 30
	-
	3
	1
	

	TOTAL
	4
	19
	7
	2

	                                                                                     IN TOTAL
	32 Killings


	Date
	Custodial and Extra judicial Killings
	Women Killed
	Children Killed
	Alleged Disappearances

	13 April 2010
	-
	-
	3
	-

	TOTAL
	0
	0
	3
	0


ENQUIRIES ORDERED IN THE MONTH OF APRIL 2010

	Date 
	Nature of incident 
	Name of Victim (s) 
	Agency involved 
	Probe order by 
	Remarks  

	April 14 – 2010
	Fake Encounter 
	Habibullah Khan, son of Saida Khan 
	6 Rashtriya Rifles - Army
	Media quoting sources that army has conducted an internal inquiry in to the incident. 

On the orders of Deputy Commissioner his body was exhumed.  
Apr 27: The CJM Handwara recorded the statements of three prosecution witnesses under section 164(A) Cr PC.
	       __




ACQUITTED IN LAJPAT NAGAR CASE, BOOKED IN RAJASTHAN BLASTS


Apr 25: A religious preacher man acquitted by a New Delhi Court in 1996 Lajpat Nagar blast after 14 years has been booked for triggering another blast in Rajasthan, at a time when he was behind bars. The 47-yr-old Abdul Gani Goni, resident of Bhaderwah area of Doda district, along with Farooq Ahmad of Islamabad, Kashmir was handed over to Rajasthan police soon after he was acquitted from all the charges in Lajpat Nagar Blast, on April 13. Goni’s family members told media. 


 	For his octogenarian mother Jana Begum, it has been a long wait of nearly 14 years to have a glimpse of her son. And with her son being shifted to another state, her hope to see Goni once again in her lifetime is fading away.  


Justice, she says, has “no meaning” in real terms. “My son was being punished for nothing”, she says. “We were told that he is wanted in another blast case at Rajasthan as such his custody was being shifted,” she told media. “My last wish was to see him, but it seems I will die without seeing him,” she added.


“They (police) detained my son for more than 14 years just on the basis of mere suspicion and court acquitting him of all the charges proves that he was innocent. Is this what justice is all about? ” she added.


As the old woman tried to put herself together, her family members could not control their emotions. Amid the charged atmosphere, all of them broke down. Abdul Gani Goni son of late Bhar-ud-din Goni, a religious preacher of Bhaderwah tehsil, according to the family members, was picked up by Gujrat police on June 2, 1995 from Ahmedabad and he was later booked in Lajpat Nagar case.





‘KHAN’S SON WAS KILLED IN FAKE ENCOUNTER’


Apr 17: The killing of Habibullah Khan has once again orphaned his three grandchildren, Saneer Ahmed Khan, Nazir and Javeeda their father Ahmadullhah Khan was also killed in a “fake encounter” allegedly by troopers 12-years ago.


“We were just three to four years old, when our father was killed by troopers. After his death we were brought up by our grandfather.” said Saneer. Saneer’s father Ahmadullah Khan, eldest among Khan’s seven children, according to the family members, had gone to nearby forests to collect the firewood on that fateful day. “Troopers killed him in cold blood and dubbed him as a militant. His death shattered our family,” said, Raj Muhammad Khan, younger brother of Ahmadullah.  He said that after death of his brother his father used to do menial jobs to eke out livelihood for his orphan grandchildren.


 	Not only this his another son Guliya left for arms training in late 90’s and left burden of his lone child on the shoulders of his old father, Raj added. “We were too young to support the family and his health and age also did not support him to do this hazardous job and he started begging to feed us,” said Saneer. “He used to remain hungry for the sake of his grandchildren. Despite living in abject poverty he was sending all his grand children to school,” said Manzoor Ahmed his relative.








WOMEN /CHILDREN KILLED





Apr 13: Paramilitary CRPF troopers and personnel of the SOG of Police allegedly drowned a teenager in river Jhelum in Sopore town. The deceased has been identified as Zubair Ahmad Bhat.


Apr 13: Two children were killed and five members of their family wounded when an explosive device went off near Line of Control (LoC) in Kupwara district, police said. The blast took place in the compound of the house in Karnah, 145 kms from Srinagar, last night. The deceased were identified as Adil Hussain, 12, son of Nazir Hussain and Faisal Hussain, 9, son of Younis Shah.





PUBLIC COMMISSION ON HUMAN RIGHTS





The Bund, Amira Kadal, Srinagar, Jammu and Kashmir


Tel: 91-194-2482820        


E-Mail: p_imroz@yahoo.co.in


Web: www.jkccs.org














PAGE  
19
The Informative Missive                                                                                                                       April 2010


